1954

The Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Company v. Central Weber Sewer Improvement District et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This is an appeal from the Judgments of the lower court in favor of plaintiffs and against the defendants in the above-entitled cases eliminating and excluding from Central Weber Sewer Improvement District certain properties located within the District. Upon stipulation of counsel this Court ordered all the cases consolidated for purposes of appeal.

Briefly the facts are as follows: On or about March 3, 1953, the Board of County Commissioners of Weber County adopted a resolution creating the Sewer District and defined the boundaries of the District. The resolution was as follows:

“RESOLUTION

“WHEREAS, pursuant to authority made and provided in Chapter 24, Laws of Utah, 1949, as amended by Chapter 32, Laws of Utah, 1951, the Board of Commissioners of Weber County, Utah, has resolved that the public health, convenience, and necessity require the creation of a sewer improvement district for the *area* hereinafter described, and

“WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Weber County has given notice of its intention to establish such a district, which notice, in conformance with the laws of the State of Utah, was duly published in the Ogden Standard-Examiner newspaper, a paper of general circulation in Weber County, once each week for five successive weeks, and

“WHEREAS, in said notice a time and place were designed (sic) at which all interested parties could ap-

pear before said Board of County Commissioners and be heard in support of or in opposition to the creation of said district, and

“WHEREAS, said hearing was had by the Board of Commissioners of Weber County on the 25th day of February, 1953, at the time and place designated in said notice, and all written protests that had been filed as required by law and all that were presented up to the adjournment of said hearing being received, and there having been eleven protests in all presented in opposition to the establishment of the district, and

“WHEREAS, the officials who prepared the last assessment roll for Weber County segregated and certified to this Board the assessed valuation of the real property appearing on the roll which lies within the proposed boundaries of this district, and it being clear that the protests filed represent far less than 25% of the assessed valuation of the real property in the district, and that the written protests filed are signed by far less than 25% in number of the real property owners within the proposed district, according to the last assessment roll for county taxes completed prior to the publishing of the notice of hearing, and

“WHEREAS, the Weber County Surveyor has checked and reported that the boundaries of the proposed district are accurate as set forth below and in the notice of hearing, and it appearing to the Board that all property originally included in the proposed district, as set out in the notice of intention to establish the district, will be directly benefited by the proposed improvements and should be included within said district, and

“WHEREAS, it appears to the Board of Commissioners of Weber County that this district should be established immediately under the name of the Central Weber Sewer Improvement District,

“NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT, AND IT HEREBY IS RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Weber County, Utah, as follows:

“1. That a sewer improvement district, to be known and identified as the ‘Central Weber Sewer Improvement District’, shall be, and it is hereby established and created.

“2. That the boundaries of said district are defined as follows, and all area and property lying within these described bounds is now within and henceforth a part of this sewer district:

(Here follows a description by metes and bounds of the area encompassed within the District.)

“3. That at the hearing held by the Board of Commissioners of Weber County on the 25th day of February, 1953, at the time and place designated in the notice published in conformance with the laws of the State of Utah, setting forth the intention to establish a sewer district, only eleven protests by number against the establishment of said sewer district were filed with the County Clerk and received by the Board of Commissioners of Weber County, and it is hereby determined that the protests filed and presented represent far less than 25% of the assessed valuation of the real property in the district, and the said protests are signed by far less than 25% in number of the real property

owners within the proposed district, according to the last assessment roll for county taxes completed prior to the publication of the notice of hearing.

"4. That the boundaries of the proposed district, as set forth above, are accurate and that all property originally included in the proposed district, as set out in the notice of intention to establish the district, it being the same property as described above, will be directly benefited by the proposed improvements, and all of this property should be included within said district and none should be eliminated.

"5. That it appears that the Board of Trustees of this improvement district should be comprised of approximately seven members, and it is recommended by the Board of Commissioners of Weber County that if the members of the Board of Trustees were appointed in the following manner, it would make an excellent working organization: One each to be designated and appointed by the Mayor, with the consent and approval of the governing body of the municipalities of the City of North Ogden, the City of South Ogden, and the City of Riverdale, and two each to be designated and appointed by the Chairman of the County Commission and the Mayor of Ogden City, with the consent and approval of the governing bodies of said Ogden City and Weber County.

"6. That the public health and safety make it mandatory that this resolution become effective immediately upon signing.

"RESOLVED, ORDERED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Weber County, State of Utah, this 3rd day of March, 1953.

Commissioner Lyman M. Hess voting aye
Commissioner Arthur P. Brown voting aye
Commissioner Elmer Carver voting aye

/s/ Lyman M. Hess
Lyman M. Hess, Chairman of the
Board of County Commissioners
of Weber County, State of Utah.

“ATTEST:

/s/ Lawrence M. Malan
Lawrence M. Malan
Weber County Clerk

“STATE OF UTAH }
County of Weber } ss.

“I, LAWRENCE M. MALAN, County Clerk and
Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners
of Weber County, State of Utah, do hereby certify that
the above and foregoing resolution was passed by the
Board of County Commissioners of said County at the
regular meeting held March 3, 1953; I further certify
that upon passing of the resolution, Commissioners
Hess, Brown, and Carver voted aye.

“IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand
and official seal at my office in the County of Weber,
State of Utah, this 10th day of March, 1953.

(SEAL)

/s/ Lawrence M. Malan
Lawrence M. Malan
County Clerk and Ex-Officio Clerk
of the Board of Commissioners
of Weber County.” (Italics ours.)

All the area and property lying within the described boundaries were declared to be a part of the District. Prior to the adoption of said resolution, each of the respondents herein filed a protest and petition with the Board of Commissioners alleging that certain of the property, real and personal, classified for assessment purposes by the State Tax Commission of Utah would not be directly benefited in any manner by the establishment of the District. A hearing was had by the Board of County Commissioners on February 25, 1953, after notice duly published, for the consideration of protests; and after consideration of the protests the Board found that all the property should be included within said District and none should be eliminated.

The District was created pursuant to Chapter 24, Laws of Utah 1949, as amended by Chapter 32, Laws of Utah, 1951.

Thereafter each of the respondents filed a complaint and petition for review in the District Court of Weber County, and Writs of Review were duly issued by the Court. The complaints and petitions did not attack the regularity of the proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners. Appellants filed Motions to Dismiss (or if said Motions were denied) Demands for More Definite Statement and Motions to Strike. The Motions were denied by the Court. Appellants then filed their Answers and issue was joined thereon. Prior to the trial, appellants filed Motions for Judgment on the Pleadings which Motions were also denied by the Court. Counsel for the respective parties in each case then stipulated in writing certain facts which were made

a part of the record in each case, subject to appellants' reservation of objections as hereinafter appears in the stipulation. Upon the case being called for trial before the Court without a jury, objection was made by appellants to the introduction of any evidence, and objection was made to the introduction of any evidence included within the stipulation of facts. The Court reserved ruling on those objections pending the filing of briefs and the oral arguments of counsel. The cases were then submitted to the Court for decision based solely upon said stipulations, the exhibits and the records. No other testimony was offered or received by the Court. Written briefs were filed by each of the parties and the matter argued.

On or about the 27th day of February, 1954, the Court entered the following:

1. Order overruling objection to the introduction of any evidence and objection to the introduction of evidence included within stipulation of facts;
2. Order denying motion for judgment on the pleadings;
3. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law; and
4. Judgment.

The following paragraphs were offered as stipulated facts, if admissible at all, in each of the six cases, and are common to each:

“Between counsel for the parties in the above entitled action, it is hereby stipulated and agreed as follows:

“1. Subject to the provisions of paragraph numbered 2 hereof, the facts set forth in this

stipulation shall be made a part of the record in this case in all respects as though such facts were proved by witnesses sworn and testifying in open court.

"2. This stipulation shall be without prejudice to the right of defendants to object to the materiality of any fact set forth in paragraphs numbers 3, 4 and 5 hereof or the relevancy of any such fact to any issue involved in this case, and defendants expressly reserve the right to interpose any such objection at the time this stipulation is offered and tendered for filing in this case.

"* * *

"4. If the house journal for the Twenty-Ninth Regular Session of the Legislature of the State of Utah (1951 Regular Session) were introduced in this case, such journal would show that when senate bill No. 22 was introduced, said bill provided for the elimination from any district proposed thereunder of property originally included therein, but which the county commissioners should determine would not be benefited by the proposed improvements. Said journal would further show that said senate bill No. 22 was later amended to provide for the elimination from any such district of property included therein, *but which the county commissioner shall determine would not be directly benefited by the proposed improvements.*

"5. If a witness or witnesses were called and sworn by the parties hereto, such witness or witnesses would testify that the nature and extent of the improvements proposed by the defendants and respondents are the construction of a sanitary sewer system consisting of sewage outfall lines,

sewage interceptor and trunk collection lines, sewage treatment plants and related facilities and appurtenances for the collection, treatment and disposition of sewage within the district.

“6. If a witness or witnesses were called by defendants and sworn herein, that such witness or witnesses would testify that the creation of the proposed district and the construction, operation and maintenance of the sewage facilities proposed would be for the general benefit of the area included within the limits of said district.” (Italics ours.)

The only material differences in these stipulations in the various cases were the descriptions of the several properties sought to be excluded by the several respondents and the descriptions of the properties admittedly included within the District.

For the convenience of the Court we are setting out below the several statements of agreed facts, if admissible at all, as they were set forth in the stipulations in each case, to show those differences as between the claims of the several respondents:

No. 8171. The Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Co. case:

“3. If W. S. Speckman were called by plaintiff and sworn in this case, he would testify as follows:

“(a) The Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Company, plaintiff above named, on the date hereof has, located within the limits of Central Weber Sewer Improvement District, or there is apportioned to said district for assessment and taxation purposes, the following property, to wit:

- “(1) Trackage
3.69 miles first main line, including
100 foot right of way.
13.06 miles yard and industry tracks,
exclusive of any land.
.58 miles sugar works spur, exclusive
of any land.
- “(2) 17.95 miles of telephone, telegraph, and
transmission lines.
- “(3) Rolling stock, consisting of locomotives
and cars, apportioned on a basis of
17.33 miles.
- “(4) Real estate outside right of way con-
sisting of 48.14 acres of land.
- “(5) Improvements and personal property
located upon or affixed to the land des-
ignated in the above sub-paragraph (4).
- “(6) Personal property, consisting of ma-
chinery and tools not located upon or
affixed to the land designated in the
above sub-paragraph (4).

“(b) Plaintiff, The Denver and Rio Grande
Western Railroad Company, does not seek to have
excluded from said district said 48.14 acres of
land nor the improvements or personal property
located thereon. Plaintiff seeks to have excluded
from said district all of the other property above
described.

“(c) None of the property of plaintiff, The
Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad des-
ignated in sub-paragraphs numbered (1), (2), (3)
and (6) and sought to be excluded from said dis-
trict in this action is presently physically con-
nected to any sewage facilities, and in the con-

duct of plaintiff's railroad operations, it is not desirable or feasible to make a physical connection of any such property to any sewage facilities. In the ordinary and regular operation of the railroad transportation business the rights of way, rolling stock and other equipment are used in connection and in conjunction with the property which plaintiff concedes may remain within the district."

No. 8172. The Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Co. case:

"3. If W. H. Morton were called by plaintiff and sworn in this case, he would testify as follows:

"(a) The Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company, plaintiff above named, on the date hereof has, located within the limits of Central Weber Sewer Improvement District, or there is apportioned to said district for assessment and taxation purposes, the following property, to wit:

"(1) 6224 telephone poles.

"(2) 18 miles of copper wire.
616 miles of iron wire.

"(3) 943,766 feet of cable.
172,707 feet of single duct conduit.

"(4) 3 parcels of land and buildings thereon.

"(5) personal property, consisting of switchboards, materials and supplies, furniture and fixtures, and toll terminal equipment, located within the buildings on the premises designated in sub-paragraph (4) above.

"(6) Personal property, consisting of private branch exchange equipment, teletype-

writers, tools and work equipment and mobile radio telephone equipment located outside the buildings on the premises designated in sub-paragraph (4) above.

“(b) Plaintiff, The Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company does not seek to have excluded from said district said three parcels of land and the buildings thereon. Plaintiff seeks to have excluded from said district all of the other property above described.

“(c) None of the property of plaintiff, The Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company designated in sub-paragraphs numbered (1), (2), (3), (5) and (6) and sought to be excluded from said district in this action is presently physically connected to any sewage facilities, and in the conduct of plaintiff’s telephone operations, it is not desirable or feasible to make a physical connection of any such property to any sewage facilities. In the ordinary and regular operation of the telephone communication business the poles, wires, cables, switchboards and other equipment are used in connection and in conjunction with the property which plaintiff concedes may remain in the district. The property in sub-paragraph (5) described is located within buildings, which buildings are presently connected with sewage facilities.”

No. 8173. Utah Power & Light Co. Case:

“3. If O. J. Lowe were called by plaintiff and sworn in this case, he would testify as follows:

“(a) The Utah Power & Light Company, plaintiff above named, on the date hereof, has located within the limits of Central Weber Sewer Improvement District the following property, the

inclusion of which in said District it has protested and now protests, as classified for assessment and taxation purposes :

“(1) Transmission lines

Poles and pole structures, together with crossarms, insulators, attachments and appurtenances, sectionalizing switch-racks and overhead conductors and devices carrying voltage of 44,000 volts and over, and the easements therefor.

“(2) Distribution lines

Poles and pole structures, crossarms, insulators, attachments, appurtenances, transformers, protective equipment such as lightning arresters and grounding devices, and overhead conductors and devices such as switches, voltage regulators, capacitors and cutouts carrying voltage under 44,000 volts, and the easements therefor.

“(3) Substation improvements and equipment

Supporting structures, buses, switches (manual and motor operated), protective, control and measuring equipment, insulators, appurtenant attachments, transformers and other recognized substation equipment.

“(4) Power plant equipment and improvements

Electric generating equipment consisting of turbines, generators, buses, switches (manual and motor operated), control equipment, protective equipment and communication equipment.

“(5) Telephone lines

Poles and pole structures, crossarms, insulators, attachments, appurtenances, and conductors for voice and signal transmission, and the easements therefor.

“(b) None of the property of plaintiff, Utah Power & Light Company, designated in sub-paragraphs numbered 1 to 5, inclusive, and sought to be excluded from said District in this action, is presently physically connected to any sewage facility, except that some of the property described in sub-paragraph (4) above is located in buildings which have toilet installations and in the conduct of plaintiff's operations it is not desirable or feasible to make a physical connection of any such property to any sewage facilities. That in the ordinary and regular operation of plaintiff's business, the transmission and distribution lines, substations and other equipment described herein are used in connection and in conjunction with the property which plaintiff concedes may remain in the District.

“7. That the picture attached hereto, marked Exhibit 1 and entitled ‘Roy-Riverdale 130 kv Taps’, shows a part of a typical transmission line such as plaintiff seeks to exclude from the Central Weber Sewer Improvement District; that the picture attached hereto, marked Exhibit 2 and entitled ‘Typical 12.5 kv Distribution Line on Riverdale Road’, shows a part of a distribution line typical of those plaintiff seeks to exclude from said District; that the picture attached hereto, marked Exhibit 3 and entitled ‘South Ogden Substation,’ shows a substation typical of those plaintiff seeks to exclude from said District; that the

pictures attached hereto, marked Exhibits 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 and entitled 'Riverdale Plant 130 kv Transformer Bank', 'Roy-Riverdale 130 kv Line Terminal Tower and Air Break Switches on Line No. 1', 'Generators—Riverdale Plant', 'Generator—Pioneer Plant' and 'Switchrack—Roy-Riverdale 130 kv Nos. 1 and 2 at Riverdale Plant', show power plant equipment typical of that plaintiff seeks to exclude from the said District."

No. 8174. Bamberger Railroad Company, et al case:

"3. If H. L. Balser, were called by plaintiff, Bamberger Railroad Company, and sworn in this case, he would testify as follows:

"(a) The Bamberger Railroad Company, one of the plaintiffs above named, on the date hereof has located within the limits of Central Weber Sewer Improvement District, or there is apportioned to said District for assessment and taxation purposes, the following property, to-wit:

"(1) Trackage

4.92 miles mainline and appurtenances, including right of way varying between 66 and 100 feet in width, excepting approximatelymiles located within and upon public streets and highways.

2.30 miles yard and industry tracks, exclusive of any land.

"(2) Rolling stock, consisting of locomotives and various types of cars, apportioned on a basis of 7.22 miles.

"(3) Real estate outside of right of way.

"(4) Improvements and personal property located upon or affixed to the land designated in the above subparagraph 3.

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