1954

The Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Company v. Central Weber Sewer Improvement District et al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE DISTRICT COURT PROPERLY RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE STIPULATIONS OF THE PARTIES AS TO THE MATERIAL FACTS IN THIS CASE.

The primary question to be considered here is whether or not plaintiffs and respondents will have received due process of law if appellants prevail in their contention that the hearing in district court is legally limited to purely a review of the proceedings held before the Board of County Commissioners. That the requirements of due process must be met is conceded by appellants who, on page 29 of their brief, allege that the requirements of due process will have been met if this court agrees with their contentions. In support of their arguments, appellants cite merely “Laws of Utah, 1951,” Chapter 32, Section 3 and Rule 65 (B) (b) (e)—Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. They dismiss the entire matter of due process with a vague citation to *Tygeson*

vs. *Magna Water Company*, 226 P. 2d 127. The matter of due process cannot be treated so lightly.

Plaintiffs and respondents contend that the proceedings before the district court necessarily involved the introduction of evidence, and that the evidence was not only admissible but was essential in order that the district court might make proper findings, conclusions and judgments in each case.

42 American Jurisprudence, Public Administrative Law, Section 116, sets forth the requirements of due process in the exercise of judicial or quasi-judicial power, which may be summarized as follows:

“(a) The trier of the facts must be an impartial tribunal legally constituted to determine the right involved.

“(b) No findings shall be made except upon due notice and opportunity to be heard.

“(c) The procedure at the hearing shall be consistent with the essentials of a fair trial.

“(d) Witnesses shall be sworn on oath, examined and cross-examined, and evidence offered and received in accordance with recognized principles of justice.

“(e) The hearing shall be conducted in such a way and appropriate findings made so that there will be opportunity for a court to determine whether the applicable rules of law and procedure were observed.”

If all of the above requirements were complied with by the Board of County Commissioners in determining the

issues of facts involved, then the contention of the appellants that the hearing in district court should have been limited to a determination of whether or not the board properly applied the law to facts as found, would have substantial merit. We believe, however, that an examination of the nature of the proceedings taken before the Board of County Commissioners readily demonstrates that any hearing held by that body did not meet the requirements of due process of law.

A brief examination of Chapter 32 demonstrates that the Board of County Commissioners is not constituted a fact finding body in any sense of the term and is apparently not empowered to determine any facts. The statute simply states that the board shall eliminate from the proposed district any property which it shall determine will not be directly benefited by the proposed improvements, and the determination, so far as the statute discloses, can be made entirely in the breast of the Board of County Commissioners. They are not required to nor did they try or determine any facts to reach their decision, and the resolution which the board passed establishing the district so demonstrates (see paragraph 4 of the Resolution, page 7, appellants' brief, which simply states that all property will be directly benefited and no property will be eliminated).

Respondents further contend that the hearing before the Board of County Commissioners was not conducted consistently with the essentials of a fair trial, which requires that witnesses may be sworn on oath, examined and cross-examined, and evidence offered and received in accordance with recognized principles of law. While the provisions of Section 17-5-5 U. C. A. 1953 authorize a member of the

Board of County Commissioners to administer oaths, no provisions are made in said Chapter 32 empowering the Board of County Commissioners to hear evidence, subpoena witnesses, make findings or perform any acts universally regarded as being essential to the conduct of a fair and impartial hearing for the determination of issues here involved.

A final essential requirement of due process in connection with the proceedings of administrative bodies is that appropriate findings be made setting forth the basis upon which ultimate facts are found or principles of law applied. Paragraph 4 of the resolution creating the district referred to above clearly demonstrates that the Commissioners neither made nor undertook to make any findings whatever, but on the contrary simply concluded that none of the property would be eliminated from the district and created the district without any such elimination. It is universally recognized that in the absence of findings by an administrative body nothing is presented upon which a court may determine whether or not the administrative body acted pursuant to its jurisdiction and regularly pursued its authority.

The appellants' position, namely that the failure of the Board of County Commissioners to abide by the requisites of due process is attributable solely to the fault of plaintiffs and respondents who should have insisted that the board follow the requirements of due process, seems somewhat untenable here. Due process would indeed become purely ethereal if the burden of guaranteeing its requirements were cast upon those whom the doctrine is designed to protect.

This is particularly true here where plaintiffs and respondents were entitled to assume that the Board of County Commissioners correctly interpreted the extent of the authority conferred upon them by Chapter 32, which authority manifestly falls far short of meeting the requirements of due process. It is therefore obvious that the Legislature, in enacting Chapter 32, did not intend the hearing before the Board of County Commissioners to be a judicial or quasi judicial inquiry meeting the requirements of due process, and wisely provided in the enactment for appeal to a tribunal ideally constituted to determine facts and render due process.

The propriety of the exercise of judicial power by the administrative creatures of legislatures has been the subject of discussion and litigation since the inception of "board government." The arguments which have persuaded courts that such exercise has been proper are (1) that the board in question is peculiarly well qualified by training and experience (or will become so) to determine questions of fact within a special field of inquiry outside the general ken of the judiciary, and (2) that such exercise is necessary in order to produce an efficient and effective administrative enforcement of the public interest in matters of executive character (See Re Opinion of Justices, 87 N. H. 492, 179 A 344).

It must have been as obvious to the legislature as it is to us that the County Commission is not specially qualified by training and experience to determine such abstruse questions as are here involved and will not become so by daily organizing new districts. The strong likelihood is

that this commission will never organize another district under this act. It is apparent also that the exercise of judicial power by the commission is not necessary in order to produce an efficient enforcement of the public interest. The courts are readily available and well constituted to consider these problems, and their calendars will not become cluttered with a plethora of such cases, as they would with tax cases or rate cases or compensation cases.

The usual reasons for conferring judicial power on an executive body are simply absent here.

Treated in the light of the principles here considered, it seems abundantly clear that the essential requirements of due process were not complied with in the proceedings taken before the Board of County Commissioners and that the plaintiffs and respondents were entitled to introduce evidence before the district court and that that court did not err as alleged by the appellants. The authorities support these propositions.

In *Patterick vs. Carbon Water Conservancy District*, 145 P. 2d 503, our Supreme Court reviews the statute authorizing the creation of water conservancy districts under the Water Conservancy Act of 1941. This act provides, among other things, for the taking of certain proceedings before the district court in connection with the organization of such districts. The court in concluding that the Act affords due process of law observes that:

“As we have already shown, the proceedings creating a Water Conservancy District is a judicial proceeding. The sections quoted above provide for notice of hearing to all persons interested. Such

persons are given an opportunity to come into court and object to the creation of the district, if they so desire. This is the due process of law."

The foregoing statement clearly demonstrates that an interested party must be given his day in court in order to comply with due process of law.

In *Tygeson v. Magna Water Co.*, 226 P. 2d 127, our Supreme Court considered the constitutionality of Chapter 24, Laws of Utah 1949, which was amended by Chapter 32, Laws of Utah 1951, here directly involved. The court appears to take for granted the proposition that any property owner affected would be entitled to present facts before a court, for it points out that:

"Before the district is organized any owner whose property may be affected and who has complied with the provisions of the Act as to written protest may come into court and have the matter of *whether his property will be benefited* or whether the proceedings in establishing the district have been made in compliance with the statute, *reviewed by the court*. This is due process." (Italicizing ours.)

It is to be noted that the Court did not say that the record or actions of the Board could be reviewed, but clearly stated that the matter of whether or not his property would be benefited was to be reviewed by the Court.

The case of *New England T. & T. Co. v. Department of Public Utilities*, 159 N. E. 743, 56 A. L. R. 784 (Mass.), further illustrates this rule. In that case, an appeal was taken from an order of the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities. The appeal was taken to a trial court. In

the trial court, the telephone company undertook to prove certain facts by evidence. The trial judge ruled that the telephone company was not entitled to introduce any evidence under its petition and that the case must be decided upon the record of the proceedings before the commission. The Supreme Court of Massachusetts in holding that the telephone company was entitled to introduce evidence in the proceeding before the court, stated that:

“The law is established that, upon an appeal under Gen. Laws, chap. 25, section 5, the court will not hear evidence to review or revise findings of fact made by the department. No power is given to rehear facts, (citing cases). The parties must not withhold evidence from the department and produce it in court, (citing cases). Where, however, there is no finding of fact material to petitioner’s right to review, this rule does not forbid the presentation of evidence to establish it. Such evidence is not offered in rehearing of issues of fact decided by the department, but as the basis in fact to support a claim of right. Unless such evidence is admissible, the right to review given by the statute is not broad enough to secure due process of law, and the statute may be rendered unconstitutional, (citing cases). There must be a fair opportunity for submitting the issue of confiscation or undue interference with the right of management to a judicial tribunal for determination upon its own independent judgment as to both law and fact, (citing cases).”

If the respondents had been denied the right to introduce evidence before the district court and denied the right to have appropriate findings of fact made in these cases, such denials would unquestionably render Chapter 32 un-

constitutional. It goes without saying that the Legislature did not intend that its act would be unconstitutional, and it therefore accordingly follows that it must necessarily have been the Legislative intent to afford property owners standing in the position of respondents the right to present evidence upon the issues of fact and law herein involved and to have such evidence passed upon and the issue determined in accordance with the requirements of due process of law.

The principles announced in the Massachusetts case are further illustrated in the case of *Virginian Railway Co. v. System Federation No. 40 et al.*, 57 S. C. T. 592, 300 U. S. 515. That case involved a certification of representation of a labor union by the National Mediation Board. The certification was made as a result of an election held for the purpose of determining representatives for collective bargaining purposes. After certification by the National Mediation Board, suit was brought by the labor organization against the railroad company in the district court of the United States to compel enforcement of the certification of the board. In the district court, evidence was introduced pursuant to which the trial court found that the labor union was the duly authorized representative of certain of the employees of the railroad company. The railroad company, in the Supreme Court of the United States, insisted that the Certificate of the Mediation Board was fatally defective upon the ground that the findings on which it was based were not set forth. However, the trial court heard independent evidence on the subject and entered its own find-

ings. In holding that the court was entitled to hear evidence and make its own findings, the Supreme Court said:

“Whether the certification, if made as to those facts, is conclusive, it is unnecessary now to determine. But we think it plain that if the Board omits to certify any of them, the omitted fact is open to inquiry by the court asked to enforce the command of the statute, (citing cases). Such inquiry was made by the trial court which found the number of eligible voters and thus established the correctness of the Board’s ultimate conclusion.”

In the case at bar, inasmuch as respondents actually had no hearing before the Board of County Commissioners of such character as to meet the requirements of due process of law, and since no findings whatever were made, it becomes essential that the court hear the evidence in order to make appropriate findings and decisions.

By reason and authority, it therefore appears abundantly clear that the district court did not err in receiving any material or relevant evidence in connection with these proceedings.

POINT II.

THE DISTRICT COURT PROPERLY ELIMINATED FROM THE DISTRICT THE PROPERTIES OF RESPONDENTS WHICH WILL NOT BE DIRECTLY BENEFITED BY THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.

A. THE STATUTORY REQUIREMENT OF ELIMINATION, UPON PROTEST OF PROP-

ERTY WHICH WILL NOT BE DIRECTLY BENEFITED BY THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS IS NOT LIMITED TO THE ELIMINATION OF REAL PROPERTY.

Though the appellants devote some space in their brief in support of the proposition that a *district* is a *geographical* area, this point, we believe, can be conceded inasmuch as the act itself provides for geographical definition thereof. Respondents, however, take issue with appellants' proposition that only real property may be eliminated from the district.

In this connection it should be pointed out that one of the strongest reasons advanced by appellants for their contention is that Chapter 32 provides that only real property is included in the district. Beginning at the bottom of page 32 of appellants' brief, they state as follows:

"Nowhere in the action is anything said about *including* personal property in the district. In fact the only thing that is discussed in the act as being *included* is *real property*. Then when that same statute goes on to say what shall be *eliminated* under certain specified conditions, in the following language:

" 'In such resolution establishing such district, the board of County Commissioners shall *eliminate* from said proposed district any *property originally included therein*, but which it shall determine will not be directly benefited by the proposed improvements.' "

it can only mean what it says, that the property which might be *eliminated*, under the conditions

specified, is *any* of the *property* which was *originally included* in the proposed district. And the only *property* which was *included* in the proposed district was *real property*; and hence nothing but *real property* could be *eliminated* from the district or could have been *eliminated* from the proposed district in the first instance on the protest of the respondents."

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